
1 

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA 

October 24, 2023, 7:00 pm 

RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

6101 CAPULINA AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, IL 60053  

In accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act, all Village Board and Commission meetings 

are open to the public. This meeting can be viewed remotely via the live stream link found at: 

www.mortongroveil.org/stream. (If an Executive Session is placed on the agenda, the meeting 

shall commence at 6:00 pm and the time between 6:00 pm and 7:00 pm shall be used for the 

Executive Session per 1-5-7A of the Village of Morton Grove Municipal Code. If the Agenda does 

not include an Executive Session, the meeting will begin at 7:00 pm.)  

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting – October 10, 2023

4. Special Reports

a. Saved by the Belt Awards

Presented by Morton Grove Police Department

Recipients: Mr. Baldemar Esquivel-Orozco and Mr. Philip Whittles

b. Illinois Traffic Safety Challenge for 2022-23 Award

Presented by Paul Rizzo, Illinois Traffic Safety Challenge Law Enforcement Liaison

5. Public Hearings – None

6. Plan Commission Reports - None

7. Residents’ Comments (agenda items only)

8. President’s Report – Administration, Comprehensive Plan, Council of Mayors, Northwest

Municipal Conference, Strategic Plan Committee

9. Clerk’s Report – Family & Senior Services, Advisory Commission on Aging Condominium

Association

10. Staff Report

http://www.mortongroveil.org/stream


2 

a. Village Administration

b. Corporation Counsel

11. Reports by Trustees

a. Trustee Khan – Finance Department, Appearance Commission, Capital Projects,

Lehigh/Ferris TIF (Trustee Travis)

b. Trustee Minx – Fire Department, Fire Pension Board, Special Events Commission,

RED Center, NIPSTA (Trustee Thill)

c. Trustee Shiba – Building Department, Environment & Natural Resources

Commission, Legal Department, IT Department (Trustee Witko)

d. Trustee Thill – Public Works Department, SWANCC (Solid Waste Agency of

Northern Cook County), MG-Niles Water Commission, Traffic Safety Commission

(Trustee Minx)

1. Resolution 23-40: Authorizing a Contract with Hoerr Construction, Inc. for

the 2023 Sewer Lining Program

e. Trustee Travis – Police Department, Police Pension Board, Fire & Police

Commission, Community Relations Commission, (Trustee Khan)

f. Trustee Witko – Community & Economic Development Department, Economic

Development Commission, Plan Commission/ Zoning Board (Trustee Shiba)

12. Other Business

13. Presentation of Warrants: $412,058.75

14. Residents’ Comments

15. Adjournment



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE PRESIDENT 
AND THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
OCTOBER 10, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER 

I. Village President Dan DiMaria convened the Regular Meeting of the Village Board at 7:00 p.m.
in the Council Chambers of Village Hall.

II. Village Clerk Eileen Harford called the roll. Present were Trustees Saba Khan, Rita Minx,
Ashur Shiba, John Thill, Connie Travis, and Janine Witko.

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Trustee Minx moved to approve the Minutes of the September 26, 2023 Village Board Meeting as 
presented. Trustee Khan seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously via voice vote.  

IV. 

1. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

SPECIAL REPORTS 

Outstanding Neighbor Recognition: MCC Academy, Superintendent Habeeb Quadri, Nominated by 
Julia S. Molloy Education Center 

Mayor DiMaria welcomed Community Relations Commissioner Kristey Chalabi to the podium to 
present this Special Report. Ms. Chalabi said she was proud to represent the Commission this 
evening. She explained that the Commission's purpose is to foster, encourage, and improve our 
sense of community through positive interactions among all residents regardless of age gender, 
religion, national origin or economic status. Ms. Chalabi then asked the nominators and nominees 
to join her. 

Ms. Chalabi said the Outstanding Neighbor Program gives all Morton Grove residents the chance 
to acknowledge an outstanding neighbor for doing special things that make their neighborhood a 
better place to live. Tonight’s Outstanding Neighbor(s) are Superintendent Habeeb Quadri and the 
MCC Academy, nominated by the Julia S. Malloy Education Center. Ms. Chalabi introduced the 
principal of the Malloy Education Center, Chris Perry.  

Ms. Perry said she nominated Mr. Quadri and the MCC Academy because of the great relationship 
the Malloy Education Center has with them. She said, in her first year as principal, during the first 
month of school, she got a knock on her door on morning at 9:15 am. It turned out that a  
construction worker nearby had cut a gas line, resulting in the urgent need to evacuate the  
Malloy Education Center—for the day!  



Minutes of October 10, 2023 Board Meeting 

2

IV. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

SPECIAL REPORTS (continued) 

Ms. Perry said she called the MCC and asked if they could evacuate to the MCC’s location and they 
said, “Come on over!” They’ve been a great partner ever since—even opening up space in their 
parking lot for their neighbors when construction was occurring in their parking lots! The latest 
“joint venture” between Malloy Educational Center and the MCC Academy is have some of the 
MCC’s students who are high school seniors are coming over to Malloy on a daily basis to work 
with some of the educational center’s students. Ms. Perry said she looks forward to continuing this 
wonderful partnership with the MCC Academy. 

Ms. Chalabi then read the nominating letter sent in by Ms. Perry, which reiterated how patient 
and supportive the MCC Academy has been during the disruptions caused by the Malloy Education 
Center’s construction projects. It mentioned a recently held cultural night at the Center, where  
the Academy provided food and dancers. The letter said the MCC Academy generously shares  
information on their culture, which helps foster acceptance of diversity. Both organizations are 
partnering to build a strong community. 

Mayor DiMaria said, “How cool is this, to have two important community groups coming together. 
This epitomizes what Morton Grove is.” He said it wasn’t a surprise at all that Habeeb had been  
nominated, since he has been all about building community since day one. Mayor DiMaria said 
he’s very proud that both organizations call Morton Grove home. He gave Habeeb a pin and a pen, 
and said the Village normally also includes a $25 gift certificate, but in this case, the Village will be 
providing lunch to Habeeb and his staff one day. 

Habeeb thanked the Village and the Community Relations Commission. He said the Academy and 
the Education are “incredibly close”—especially on Fridays! As he thanked Ms. Perry and the  
Education Center for the nomination, he said he was grateful for the connection between the two 
groups and the open communication between both. He then introduced Mrs. Sharif, who is in 
charge of the MCC’s Morton Grove campus, saying “I do all the talking; she does all the work.” The 
assemblage congratulated both groups for their fine work. 

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

NONE 

VI. PLAN COMMISSION REPORTS 

NONE 

VII. RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS (AGENDA ITEMS ONLY) 

NONE 



Minutes of October 10, 2023 Board Meeting 

3

VIII. 

1. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

2. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

Proclamation: Polio Eradication Awareness Day 

Mayor DiMaria prefaced his reading of the proclamation by saying that, when he was growing up, 
he had a couple of relatives who had polio, which opened his eyes to what a terrible disease 
this is. He then proclaimed October 24 as "Polio Eradication Awareness Day." This is the day set 
aside for recognizing the Global Polio Eradication Initiative, which has been active for over the 
35 years, and whose goal of ridding the world of this disease is closer than ever.  

Mayor DiMaria said that Rotary International, which is the parent organization of the Rotary Club 
of Skokie Valley and a founding member of the Initiative, reports that worldwide polio cases have 
been reduced by 99.9% since the first Rotary International project to vaccinate children in the 
Philippines in 1979. Rotary members across the world have contributed more than $2.1 billion 
dollars and countless volunteer hours to protect nearly 3 billion children in 122 countries from this 
paralyzing disease. Rotary’s advocacy efforts have played a role in decisions by governments to  
contribute more than $10 dollar to the effort. Today, polio remains endemic only in Afghanistan 
and Pakistan. Mayor DiMaria pointed out that, if all eradication efforts ended today, with ten 
years, polio could paralyze as many as 200,000 children each year. He encouraged all residents to 
consider and remember how fortunate we are to live polio-free, and to support the total end of 
polio on earth. 

Mayor DiMaria presented the proclamation to Al Rigoni, past president of the Skokie Valley Rotary 
Club and Jonathan Lavin, the immediate past president of the group. Mr. Rigoni pointed out that 
“Skokie Valley” is a large umbrella for the municipalities of Skokie, Morton Grove, Lincolnwood, 
and Niles. The Skokie Valley Rotary Club supports many local non-profits that provide a wide  
variety of services in the Skokie Valley municipalities. He said he’s very proud of that. 

Fall Leaf Collection Beginning Soon 

Mayor DiMaria stated that the Public Works Department will begin the annual Fall Leaf Collection 
Service, starting on October 16 and running to December 1. The Village is requesting that residents 
place leaves in the street by the curb and away from parked cars the day before their regularly 
scheduled street sweeping and refuse pick-up day. As a reminder, residents should NOT include 
other landscaping debris, such as grass clippings, bushes, flowers, or branches in leaf piles. These 
items damage equipment and cause delays in completing leaf collection. 

The Village will only pick up leaves. Residents are cautioned not to park on top of leaf piles. Many 
parts on the underside of a vehicle, specifically the exhaust system, generate a great amount of 
heat, which could ignite the leaves.  

If residents choose to place leaves in containers for collection with their regular Groot trash 
pickup, the following procedures should be followed: A dedicated 34-gallon can or biodegradable 
yard wastepaper bag must be used. Please DO NOT use plastic bags for yard waste. Also, each  
container or branch bundle must have a yard waste sticker attached to it.  



Minutes of October 10, 2023 Board Meeting 

4

VIII. 

3. 

a. 

b. 

4. 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT (continued) 

Halloween Trick-or-Treat Hours 

Mayor DiMaria announced that trick or treat hours in the Village will be from 3:30 to 7:00pm on 
Tuesday, October 1. Household participating in trick or treating are asked to turn on their porch or 
outdoor lights during the authorized hours.  

Households not interested in participating should turn off their porch lights and minimize exterior 
lighting. Trick or treaters should only visit homes that have their porch/outdoor lights on.  

Mayor DiMaria asked everyone to keep their Israeli/Jewish friends in their thoughts and prayers. 

IX. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

CLERK’S REPORT 

Clerk Harford noted that the October Senior luncheon will be at the Civic Center on November 3 
with the theme "Thanksgiving." Seniors should reserve a spot by calling 847-868-5928. 

Senior Programming has recently engaged with Oak Street Health (a division of CVS Health) to  
offer blood sugar and cholesterol screenings to local seniors. Health professionals will be at the 
Civic Center on the 3rd Thursday of every month at 10am to provide the service. No appointment 
is necessary and the screenings are free. 

Also, as a reminder, the Morton Grove Senior Ride Share Program is supported by funds through 
the SafeLIGHT Foundation and private donors. The program offers free Lyft ride to registered  
residents who are at least 65 years old. A total of 60 MG senior "households" are currently  
registered and receiving services. As of the end of August, a total of 228 rides have been provided 
since the program's inception in late 2022. Scheduled rides are provided to grocery stores,  
pharmacies, and medical appointments within MG. Rides are also available to medical  
appointments at most area hospitals and medical buildings. The Program will continue as  
long as funds are available. 

X. 

A. 

STAFF REPORTS 

Village Administrator: 

Village Administrator Czerwinski had no formal report this evening. 



Minutes of October 10, 2023 Board Meeting 

5

X. 

B. 

STAFF REPORTS (continued) 

Corporation Counsel: 

Corporation Counsel Liston had no formal report this evening. 

XI. 

A. 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS 

Trustee Khan: 

Trustee Khan had no formal report this evening, but commented that, in addition to prayers for 
Israel, this is a global crisis for the people of the Middle East, and she asked that people pray for 
those in Palestine as well. 

B. Trustee Minx:

Trustee Minx had no formal report, but commented on this weekend’s Open House at Fire Station
#4. Many people attended the event and were given tours of Station 4 and giveaways. She said it
seemed to her that the demonstration people found most compelling was “Spiderman” repelling
down the tower! She thanked Chief Ensign and that staff of the MGFD for putting on a great event.

C. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

Trustee Shiba: 

Trustee Shiba had no formal report this evening, but commented that recently, a wedding fire had 
occurred in northern Iraq, in a small village named Bakhdida. It’s one of the last Assyrian villages 
left there. One hundred forty people died. He said, “We turn on the news today and we see a lot 
of what’s happening in Palestine, Israel, Ukraine, Russia, and Iraq, and things look bleak.” He add-
ed, there are good things happening in the world, however—a lot of them right here in  
Morton Grove.  

Trustee Shiba wanted to thank a few individuals, starting with Village Administrator Ralph Czer-
winski. He said Ralph has taken so much time, sitting with him and talking with him to guide him 
and educate him. Ralph is amazing! Trustee Shiba said Ralph helped make it possible to hold the 
Assyrian Food Festival in the Village, and more recently, helped him with the vigil. 

Trustee Shiba also singled out Park Commissioner Paul Minx and Trustee Rita Minx; they were 
extremely helpful in obtaining a permit from Park District Executive Director Jeff’s Wait office for 
the vigil. He also thanked the Village’s first responders, who made sure that the vigil was peaceful 
and that everyone felt safe. Trustee Shiba thanked Mayor DiMaria and the Board of Trustees, and 
said he and his family are very glad to be in Morton Grove. 



Minutes of October 10, 2023 Board Meeting 

6

XI. 

D. 

1. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 

Trustee Thill: 

Trustee Thill presented Resolution 23-39, Authorizing the Execution of a Contract Amendment 
with Christopher B. Burke Engineering Ltd. For Preliminary and Design Engineering Services for 
Oakton Street Pedestrian Facility Improvements Project. 

The Village is cooperatively developing a project for a pedestrian facility along Oakton Street and 
Caldwell Avenue with Cook County, the Village of Niles, and the Village of Skokie. Resolution 19-12 
had authorized the execution of a contract in the amount of $164,026.41 to complete preliminary 
and design engineering for the Oakton Street Pedestrian Facility Improvements Project. Later,  
Resolution 20-40 authorized the execution of a supplemental agreement for additional preliminary 
and design engineering not included in the original scope of work in the amount of $25,061.74 

The project has been split into three stages in order to build segments as they are ready to be 
built. This requires additional engineering effort not included in the original scope of work or  
the supplemental work. There was additional engineering effort required beyond the first  
supplemental authorization that needs to be paid. The Village of Niles has requested an additional 
connection to the forest preserve, which requires additional engineering effort.  

This Resolution will approve amending the contract of Christopher B. Burke Engineering Ltd. to 
complete the additional engineering effort in the amount of $77,500. 

Truste Thill moved to approve Resolution 23-39, seconded by Trustee Witko. 

Trustee Thill asked if this price is just for the north end. Mr. Czerwinski said yes, it would be 
running between River and the entrance to the St. Paul Woods. The cost will be shared by Skokie 
and Niles as well. Mr. Czerwinski said the new 10-foot path offers safety and security, and has 
come together with funds from Skokie, Niles, and Morton Grove as well as Cook County and the 
State of Illinois. Mr. Czerwinski said there will be a ribbon-cutting with representatives from the 
various funding agencies on October 19, 2023. 

Trustee Thill commented that he was raised to spend money on ”needs,” not ”wants.” He said he 
did not see any reason to have a path on the south side and the north side, and he had not seen 
any evidence to prove there is such a need. Meanwhile, possibly a quarter of a million dollars is 
being spent. He moved to table this Resolution so the Board could put more thought into this. 
There was no second to Trustee Thill’s motion, so Mayor DiMaria called for the vote on the 
motion to approve Resolution 23-39. 

Motion passed: 5 ayes, 1 nay. 

Tr. Khan  aye  Tr. Minx  aye  Tr. Shiba  aye 
Tr. Thill  nay  Tr. Travis  aye  Tr. Witko  aye 



Minutes of October 10, 2023 Board Meeting 

7

XI. 

E. 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 

Trustee Travis: 

Trustee Travis announced that the Community Relations Commission (CRC) would be rolling out 
the Winter Adopt-a-Planter program, and they're hoping all Village residents and businesses will 
participate by signing up to decorate and care for the large Village planters located at the train  
station, Civic Center, and along Dempster Street and Waukegan Road. This program provides  
residents an opportunity to show pride in our community by adopting a planter to decorate and 
care for over the season. She noted that the majority of planters will include a 4-foot tall live  
evergreen tree for residents to decorate. And, new this year, some of the planters on Waukegan 
Road will have Red Twig Dogwood bushes planted in them as a permanent display. There will  
also be a few planters in various locations with a unique winter plant display. Instructions will be 
provided on how to decorate these planters. Online registration has begun but it ends on  
November 10, 2023, or when all the planters have been adopted. For more information, please 
call 847-663-3007 or email CRC@mortongroveil.org. 

F. Trustee Witko:

Trustee Witko had no formal report this evening.

XII. OTHER BUSINESS 

NONE 

XIII. WARRANTS 

Trustee Khan presented the Warrant Register for October 10, 2023 in the amount of $591,567.73. 
She moved to approve the Warrant Register as presented, seconded by Trustee Minx. 

Motion passed: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 

Tr. Khan  aye  Tr. Minx  aye  Tr. Shiba  aye 
Tr. Thill  aye  Tr. Travis  aye  Tr. Witko  aye 

XIV. RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS 

Rudolf Vilk, 7508 Emerson. Mr. Vilk said he has a problem with Trustee Witko; he has given her 
two letters, once concerning his water bill and the other concerning his village sticker. He said that 
people who use less than 3,000 gallons of water still have to pay for 3,000 gallons of water. He  
also said that it makes no sense for a person who owns a vehicle and doesn’t use it to still have to 
pay for a village sticker for the vehicle, especially when said vehicle is on private property.  

mailto:CRC@mortongroveil.org


Minutes of October 10, 2023 Board Meeting 

8

XV. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business being brought before the Board, Trustee Minx moved to adjourn 
the meeting, seconded by Trustee Travis. Motion passed unanimously via voice vote. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m. 

PASSED this 24th day of October, 2023. 

Trustee Khan 

Trustee Minx  __________ 

Trustee Shiba 

Trustee Thill  __________ 

Trustee Travis  __________ 

Trustee Witko  __________ 

APPROVED by me this 24th day of October, 2023. 

Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Board of Trustees, Morton Grove, Illinois 

APPROVED and FILED in my office this 25th day of October, 2023. 

______________________________________ 

Eileen Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove, Cook County, Illinois 

Minutes by Teresa Cousar 



Submitted by: Ralph E. Czerwinski, Village Administrator 

Reviewed by:  Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 

Reviewed by:  Mike Lukich, Director of Public Works 

Prepared by:  Kevin Lochner, Director of Operation  

Legislative Summary 

Resolution 23-40 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH HOERR CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

FOR THE 2023 SEWER LINING PROGRAM 

Introduced: October 24, 2023 

Purpose: To authorize the Village Administrator to execute a contract with Hoerr 

Construction, Inc. for the 2023 Sewer Lining Program. 

Background: The Village has an annual program to rehabilitate older sanitary, storm, and 

combined sewer pipes to maintain flow capacity and eliminate groundwater 

infiltration and inflow into the Village’s sewer infrastructure.  

The Public Works Department developed bid and construction documents to line 

sewer segments on or near Palma Lane, Osceola Avenue, Lake Street, Oleander 

Avenue, Belleforte Avenue, and Main Street. The work required for this project 

was competitively bid by the City of Lake Forest, Illinois through the Municipal 

Partnering Initiative Cooperative Purchasing Group (MPI), an intergovernmental 

cooperative procurement program authorized by Section 1-9A-4(B) 4 of the 

Village Code. Hoerr Construction Inc. submitted the low bid. The qualifications 

of Hoerr Construction have been evaluated and were determined to be qualified 

to perform the work. The bid amount is based on unit pricing proposed by the 

contractor for the number of units estimated by the Village. (See exhibit A). This 

contract must conform to the requirements of the Prevailing Wage Act. 

Programs, Departments 

 or Groups Affected 

Public Works Department, Residents 

Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed $140,000.00. Since this is a unit price contract, the final contract 

amount will be based on the actual quantity of work performed 

Source of Funds: 2023 Enterprise Fund Account Number 40-50-34-55-2290 

Workload Impact: The Public Works Department, as part of its normal work activities, will manage 

and implement the project. 

Administrator 

Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

Second Reading: Not Required 

Special Considerations 

or Requirements: 

None 



RESOLUTION 23-40 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH HOERR CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

FOR THE 2023 SEWER LINING PROGRAM   

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but not 

limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and    

          WHEREAS, the Village has an annual program to rehabilitate older sanitary, storm, and combined 

sewer pipes to maintain flow capacity and eliminate groundwater infiltration and inflow into the Village’s 

sewer infrastructure and 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department developed bid and construction documents to line sewer 

segments on or near Palma Lane, Osceola Avenue, Lake Street, Oleander Avenue, Belleforte Avenue, and 

Main Street. 

WHEREAS, the work required for this project was competitively bid by the city of Lake Forest, 

Illinois through the Municipal Partnering Initiative Cooperative Purchasing Group (MPI), an 

intergovernmental cooperative procurement program authorized by Section 1-9A-4(B) 4 of the Village 

Code; and 

WHEREAS, Hoerr Construction Inc. submitted the low bid; and 

WHEREAS, the qualifications of Hoerr Construction have been evaluated and were determined to 

be qualified to perform the work; and 

WHEREAS, the bid amount is based upon unit pricing proposed by the contractor for the number 

of units estimated by the Village (See Exhibit A); and 

WHEREAS, Hoerr Construction, Inc. has completed similar projects for the Village; and  

WHEREAS, this contract must conform to the requirements of the Prevailing Wage Act; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023 Adopted Budget allocates $140,000 for sewer lining in the Enterprise Fund 

Account Number 40-50-34-55-2290. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses 

into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein, thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

SECTION 2: The Corporate Authorities accept the bid of Hoerr Construction, Inc. of Goodfield, 

Illinois, in the amount of $137,264.34.  



SECTION 3: The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Hoerr 

Construction, Inc. for the 2023 Sewer Lining Program in the amount of $137,264.34. 

SECTION 4: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works or their designees are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to execute contract change orders for the 2023 Sewer Lining 

Program up to an adjusted contract amount not to exceed $140,000.00. 

SECTION 5: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

Passed this 24th day of October 2023 

Trustee Khan  

Trustee Minx  

Trustee Shiba 

Trustee Thill 

Trustee Travis 

Trustee Witko 

Approved by me this 24th day of October 2023 

____________________________________ 

Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

Attested and Filed in my office this 

25th day of October 2023 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 



            Exhibit A    



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

B. Manner and Time of Performance. If this Bidder's Proposal is accepted, Bidder
proposes, and agrees, that the Bidder will perform the Work in the manner and time prescribed in the Bid 
Package and according to the requirements of Owner pursuant thereto. 

C. General. If this Bidder's Proposal is accepted, Bidder proposes, and agrees, that
Bidder will do all other things required of Bidder or Contractor, as the case may be, by the Bid Package. 

2. Contract Price Proposal

If this Bidder's Proposal is accepted, Bidder will, except as otherwise provided in 
Section 2.1 of the Contract, take in full payment for all Work and other matters set forth under Section 1 
above, including overhead and profit; taxes, contributions, and premiums; and compensation to all 
subcontractors and suppliers, the compensation set forth on the following "Schedule of Prices" ("Price 
Proposaf'), which Bidder understands and agrees will be made a part of the Contract: 

A. UNIT PRICE CONTRACT

For providing, performing, and completing all Work related to the 2022 SEWER
LINING PROGRAM; the sum of the products resulting from multiplying the number of acceptable units 
of Unit Price Items listed below incorporated in the Work and by the Unit Price set forth below for such 
Unit Price Item: 

COMPLETE TABLE AS INDICATED 

SCHEDULE OF PRICES 

Estimated 
Item Unit Quantity Unit Cost 

6" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 1944 $ L/l/.oO 

8" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 6974 $ 
l/'1/iYO 

10" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 1504 $ lfq.oo 

12" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 80 $ 12�.oo 

15" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 959 $ (o s-.oo 

24" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 175 $ I &>1.ov 

30" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 60 $ l/0!;, 00 

42" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 340 $ 2.-70,00

15" CIPP SHORT LINER TO 
ABANDON SERVICE LS 1 $ �.000.00

Easement Sewer 
8" CURED IN PLACE PIPE (Under the 

$ /73.00Railroad Tracks) 

Easement Sewer 
10" CURED IN PLACE PIPE 

LF 196 

LF 400 

Bid Package Sewer Lining 
Page 42 of 54 

$ (pO.(K)

Extension 

$ "ts� s-3" .oo

$ 3o<P, -z�Gi.oo 

$ 73, (oq{ii,O() 

$ /0,07,0.oO 

$ (o2
1 
r�,.oo 

$ 2Cf, '(00.0() 

$ 2 '1,3()0,0O 

$ Cf,, iI0O,O0 

$ �.000.00 

$ 33,qoi.co 

$ '2 �000,00 



12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Easement Sewer 
18" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 255 
Ravine Sewer 
8" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 83 
REINSTATEMENT OF SERVICE 
LATERALS-SANITARY SEWER EA 165 
REINSTATEMENT OF SERVICE 
LATERALS -STORM SEWER EA 20 

SEWER CLEANING -ADDITIONAL LF 300 

T-LINERS EA 28 

6" End Seals EA 16 

8" End Seals EA 58 

1 O" End Seals EA 10 

15" END SEALS EA 6 

TOTAL-➔ 

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONTRACT PRICE: 

B. BASIS FOR DETERMINING PRICES

It is expressly understood and agreed that:

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

]01.00 $ '27,S-'-/0,00 

//s.oo $ c:t,S-lf5",00 

/00,00 $ /[p, �oo. oo 

/"2,S-,0O $ zsoo.oo 

l,f. t;O $ /,3SO.O'D 

°3,t!S-0.DO $ /10, <DOD.oO

/'-10.00 $ 2,2'10,00 

l loo.co $ Gf, l"lD,00 

/10.00 $ /,'iD0,00 

2-s-o.oo $ /,S"OO.lt) 

$ qzct,7(o�.oo 

1. The approximate quantities set forth in this Schedule of Prices for each Unit
Price Item are Owner's estimate only, that Owner reserves the right to increase or
decrease such quantities, and that payment for each Unit Price Item shall be made
only on the actual number of acceptable units of such Unit Price Item installed
complete in place, measured on the basis defined in the Contract;

2. Owner is not subject to state or local sales, use and excise taxes and no such
taxes are included in this Schedule of Prices;

3. All other applicable federal, state, and local taxes of every kind and nature
applicable to the Work as well as all taxes, contributions, and premiums for
unemployment insurance, old age or retirement benefits, pensions, annuities, or
other similar benefits are included in this Schedule of Prices; and

Bid Package Sewer Lining 
Page 43 of 54 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

4. All costs, royalties, and fees arising from the use on, or the incorporation into, the
Work of patented equipment, materials, supplies, tools, appliances, devices,
processes, or inventions are included in this Schedule of Prices.

All claim or right to dispute or complain of any such estimated quantity, or to assert that there was any 
misunderstanding in regard to the nature or amount of any Unit Price Item to be provided or performed, 
or to claim any additional compensation by reason of the payment of any such tax, contribution, or 
premium or any such cost, royalty or fee is hereby waived and released. 
3. Contract Time Proposal

If this Bidder's Proposal is accepted, Bidder will commence the Work not later than the 
"Commencement Date" set forth in Attachment A to the Contract and will perform the Work diligently 
and continuously and will complete the Work not later than the "Completion Date" set forth in 
Attachment A to the Contract. 
4. Firm Proposal

All prices and other terms stated in this Bidder's Proposal are firm and shall not be 
subject to withdrawal, escalation, or change for a period of 60 days after the date on which any Bidder's 
Proposal is opened or such extended acceptance date for Bidder's Proposals as may be established 
pursuant to Sections 10 and 13 of the General Instructions to Bidders. 
5. Bidder Re1,resentations

A. No Collusion. Bidder warrants and represents that the only persons, firms, or
corporations interested in this Bidder's Proposal as principals are those named in Bidder's Sworn 
Acknowledgment attached hereto and that this Bidder's Proposal is made without collusion with any other 
person, firm or corporation. 

B. Not Barred. Bidder warrants, represents and certifies that it is not barred by law
from contracting with Owner or with any unit of state or local government. 

C. Qualified. Bidder warrants and represents that it has the requisite experience,
ability, capital, facilities, plant, organization and staff to enable Bidder to perform the Work successfully 
and promptly and to commence and complete the Work within the Contract Price and Contract Time 
Proposals set forth above. In support thereof, Bidder submits the attached Sworn Work History 
Statement. In the event Bidder is preliminarily deemed to be one of the most favorable to the interests of 
Owner, Bidder hereby agrees to furnish upon request, within two business days or such longer period as 
may be set forth in the request, such additional information as may be necessary to satisfy Owner that 
Bidder is adequately prepared to fulfill the Contract. 

D. Owner's Reliance. Bidder acknowledges that Owner is relying on all warranties,
representations and statements made by Bidder in this Bidder's Proposal. 
6. Suretv and Insurance

Bidder herewith tenders surety and msurance commitment letters as specified m 
Section 6 of the Invitation for Bidder's Proposals. 
7. Bid Security

Bidder herewith tenders a Cashier's Check or Certified Check as specified in �ection 6 of 
the Invitation for Bidder's Proposals for the sum of /0% t1.f' •,.,,o_,H.'d (is�J'B,, .. �J dollars 
("Bid Security"). 

8. Owner's Remedies

Bid Package Sewer Lining 
Page 44 of 54 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Bidder acknowledges and agrees that should Bidder fail to timely submit all additional 
information that is requested of it; or should Bidder, if Owner awards Bidder the Contract, fail to timely 
submit all the Bonds and all the certificates and policies of insurance required of it; or should Bidder, if 
Owner awards Bidder the Contract, fail to timely execute the Contract, Contractor's Certification and all 
other required documentation related to the Contract, it will be difficult and impracticable to ascertain and 
determine the amount of damage that Owner will sustain by reason of any such failure and, for such 
reason, Owner shall have the right, at its option in the event of any such default by Bidder, to retain or 
recover as reasonably estimated liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the entire amount of the Bid 
Security or to exercise any and all equitable remedies it may have against Bidder. 
9. Owner's Rights

Bidder acknowledges and agrees that Owner reserves the right to reject any and all 
Bidder's Proposals, reserves the right to accept or reject any item of any Bidder's Proposal and reserves 
such other rights as are set forth in Section 13 of the General Instructions to Bidders. 

10. Bidder's Obligations

In submitting this Bidder's Proposal, Bidder understands and agrees that it shall be bound 
by each and every term, condition or provision contained in the Bid Package, which are by this reference 
incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 

11 Contract Renewal 

This Contract may be renewed for no more than three additional and consecutive one
year terms, upon the mutual written consent of the City and Contractor. For all Work performed by 
Contractor during any renewal term, Contractor shall be paid an amount equal to the total Contract Price, 
as adjusted by the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers published by the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics of the United States Department of Labor for Chicago-Gary-Kenosha, IL-IN-WI, All Items 
(1982-84=$100) for the previous calendar year, except as the City and Contractor may otherwise mutually 
agree. 

ATTEST: 

Margaret Boyer, Deputy City Clerk 

ATTEST: 

CITY OF LAKE FOREST 

George Pandaleon, Mayor 

By: __ ��--E-x
-+-
C.
-�-

u
��
ti 
..... 
ng

-, �
Off
�ic�e_r ______ _

Bid Package Sewer Lining 
Page 45 of 54 













Peru, IL 
Mont�me!Y Twp, IL 
OilolWP, IL 
Hi9!!land Park. IL 
Kewanee. IL 

Ci!i: of Peoria. IL 
Washin!l!on, IL 
East Peona. IL 
Nae!!;Mlle Storm 
Oak Lawn I Ar!:l'.'.s Inc, 
Bulla lo Grove, IL 
K·Five/lOOT 
Elmhurst, IL 
Eureka, IL 
Mele.an Co _  
Mtm�mery Tv.p, IL 
Washin!1!on, IL 
Coal Valle�. IL 
Moline, IL 
East Moline, IL 
Glendale Hei�hlS, IL 
SiMs.lL 
Cambridge. IL 
City of Peoria, IL 
DUPa£le Coun� 
Uncolnsh1re, IL 
Gurnee, IL 
St. Chartas. IL 

CITY/STATE 

Tazewell Coun� Hi9hwa� DeDL 
Genava, IL 
BloomingtOn, IL 
Saravia, IL 
IOOT Vari®S Loearions 
Sterling. I[ 
Frankfort; IL 
Alr(s/ Homer Glen, IL 
!DOT Venous Locations 
st; Cna.rfes. IL 
Herrtase Lake. Maekmaw. 1 L 
Wood Dale, IL/ RJN Graue 
Lal<e Bluff, IL 
Sandwhloh, IL/ Strand & Associates 
Woodridge / NPR 
NapeMlle-, IL 
Morrison. IL 
E11Tn9ham, IL 
Washfn9!on, I[ 
Peona, IL - Peoria Storm 
Medina Township, Mossville. IL 
Bloomln�. IL/ Stark Excav.1.ting 
Mundelein, IL 
MaJShall. IL 

UTILITY CONTRACTORS 
P O, Box65 

1416 County Road 200 N 
Goodfield, IL 61742 

CONTACT 

Adam Ossola (815) 223-3344 
Art Wi�nd@09) 275-1687 
Ron Hartter (309) 467-5249 
Wa�e Ba�er. [847) 926-1150 
Terri Hill (309) 852-2611 
Beth UnderM:>od. (309) 494-8814 
K8\lln Schone (309) 7 45-3503 ext 303 
Denn,s Barron (309) 698-4716 
Bob Mealer �30! 420-6095 
Tom Land (708) 429-066{) 
Darin Monico, PE (847) 459-2523 
B Ill Jennings (630) 257-5600 

Chris Dufort {630) 530--3036 
Neal McAllster (309) 467,6014 
Luke Hohulin, (3092 663-9445 
Art Wie!:!i!nd (309) 275-1687 
Kevin Schone (309) 7 45.3503 ex! 303 
Alan Maj'. (309) 799--3604 
Mark Orel @09) 524-2341 
Tim Kammler (309) 752-1595 
Jeff MeCUmber {630) 260-6040 
Jim Grafton @09) 792,9181 
Ed Dole, (309) 937-3380 
Beth Underwood, (309) 494-8814 
Rlen Sin�r (630) 407-6900 
Ter� Hawkins. (847) 913-2383 
David DePino (647) 599-7550 
Dave Todd {630j 762-7071 
Dave Shuermann (309) 696-0485 
James Childress, (630) 232-1551 
Ward Snarr (309) 287-3334 
Tim Grimm. (6301454-2756 
Bob Hack. (3091 671--3658 
Brad Schrader, (815) 632-6657 
Ton� Minette, (815) 469-2177 
T om Land (7081429-0660 
Bob Hack, (309) 671-3658 
Dave Todd (630) 762-7071 
Ric Creas� (3091691-0224 
Catherine Suckle� P-E. (!PAI 682-4700 
Jeff Hanson, P-E. (847) 283-6884 
Glenn Tranowski (608} 251-4843 ext 1103 
Reid Ruprecht (312) 907-5292 
Katy Ubri2zi (630) 305-5994 
Jason Stoll (815) 266-1877 
Mike French (217) 342,5300 
Kevin Sohone \309) i 45--3503 ext 303 
Beth Underw:lOd, �9! 494-S814 
Frank Sturm, PE \309) 692-6500 
Don ColelasUie, Jr. �09! 828-5034 
Rob Greenfield \847) 949-3264 
Jason Goble (217) 465-5306 

Office (309) 691-6653 
Fax: (309) 508-7990 

Email: info@hoerr.com 
Website: www.hoerr.com 

COMPLETED CIPP LINING PROJECTS 

Water/ 

ADDRESS LENGTH SIZE COMPLETED Ambient 

3017 5th St., Peru, IL61354 339 24" Au51:17 s 

200 N Eureka St Goodfield. IL61742 40 24" Au9-17 s 

1427 CR 700N, Eureka. IL 61530 35 30" �17 s 

1160 Ha� Dai Road. Hi9hland Park, IL 60035 23,974 8".10",12".15" Oct-17 s 

401 East 3rd St, Kewanee. IL 61443 605 8" Au5t17 s 

3505 N. Dries Lane, Peoria. IL 61604 333 12'' Au9:17 s 

301 Walnut. Washin!l!2n, IL 61571 314 12" Aua-11 s 

2232£ Washin!j!on, East Peoria, IL 61611 201 8" Au!!::17 s 

180 Fort HUI Dr. Naperville, IL 60540 16,753 8'',10",12".15" Oct-17 s 

7456 W. Dwan Dr_, Tinl� Park. IL 60477 522 8" See:11 s 

51 Raupp Btv., Buffalo Grove, IL 60089 3,307 24" Ocl-17 s 

999 OakmQnt Plaza Dr. Suite 200 Westmont IL 60559 392 24",3!)",36" Oct-17 s 

986 S. Riverside Dr,, Elmhurst, IL 60126 16,466 8"-27" Oct-17 s 

121 WCenterSt Eureka, IL 61530 2,611 8", 18" Ocl-17 s 

102 S. Towanda Barnes Rd. Blooml!!!lton, IL 61705 78 30" Oct-17 s 

200 N Eureka st Goodfield, IL 61742 90 18" Oct-17 s 

301 Walnut. Washington, IL 61571 303 18" Ocf.17 s 

900 1st St. Coal Vallei, IL 61240 1,317 12". 15" Oct-17 s 

3635 4th Ave, Moline, IL 61265 4.141 12" Oct-17 s 

1200 13th Ava. East Moline, IL 61244 10,649 8" Oct-17 s 

300 Clvrc Center Plaza, Glendale Heights. IL 60139 261 42" Oct-17 s 

121 11th St, SiMs, IL 61282 1,354 8 Oct-17 s 

101 N. Pleasant St, Cambridge, IL 61238 975 12 Nov-17 s 

3505 N. Dries Lane, Peoria, IL 61604 274 12",15" Nov-17 s 

421 N Gountv Farm Rd, Wheaton, IL 60187 847 24", 42" Nov-17 s 

One Olde Ha� Day Rd, L1ncotnshcre, IL 60069 4,767 8", 12" Nov-17 s 

325 N, O'Plarne Rd., Gurnee, 1L 60031 206 18" Nov-17 s 

2 E, Main Street , St Charles, IL 60174-1984 5,722 8".10",12",15",27" Jan-18 s 

21308 IL Route 9 Tremon� IL 61568 1.416 24",30",36" Nov-17 s 

1800 South st Geneva, IL 60134-2547 5.732 6",8", 10", 12'' Dec; 17 s 

115 cast WashinJl!on street Bloomi!!!l!<m, IL 61701 3,270 8", 10". 12", 15",20'' Dec-17 s 

200 N. Raddant Rd. Batavia, IL 60610 5,041 6'',8", 10", 12",24" Dec-17 s 

401 Main St, Peona_ IL 61602-1111 2,061 18''. 24", 30". 36.". 60' Jan-18 s 

1606 Ave L. Sterling, IL 61081 196 8" Dec-17 s 

432 w_ NebraSl<a � FankfOr\ IL 60423 6,036 8" Dec-17 s 2017 Total 
7455 W. D,rt,an Dr., Tinley Park,. IL 60477 140 36" Dec-17 s 303,975 
401 Main St, Peoria, IL 61602-1111 2,061 18". 24", 30", 36", 60' Jan-18 s 

2 E. Main street, SL Charles, IL 60174-1984 5,722 ff'.10",12'1.15",27" Jan-18 s 

311 SW Water st#215, Pecria, IL 61602 236 15" Jan-18 s 

200 w _  Front Street Wheaton, IL 60187 6,859 8" Jan-18 s 

40 E Center Ave, Lake Bluff, IL 6004� 3,097 8",21".24",30" Jan-18 s 

1170 Soulll Houoolt Rd, Joffe IL60431 2,933 8" Feb-18 s 

2500 W. ArlhinJl!on st Chical8 IL 60612 351 8" Feb-18 s 

1200 W. �n Avenue NapeMlle, IL 60563 14,897 8'\ 10".16" Feb-18 s 

2QO W. Main Sl Morrison, !L 61270-2400 6.466 6"-12" Feb-18 s 

201 E. Jefferson. Ellin2ham, IL 62401 14,718 6''-12", 27'' Feb-18 s 

301 Walnut. Washinf:j!on, IL 61571 190 8",12" feb-18 s 

3505 N_ Odes Lane, Peoria, IL 61604 523 10",12",18" Mar-18 s 

7336 N. Univers!!}: SL, Peoria. IL 61614 417 12",15" Mar-18 s 

1805 W. Washln!l!on St., Blooml!!!l!on, ll 61701 113 15" Mar-18 s 

440 E. C!}'.stal st., Mundelein, IL 60060 1,498 8'',10" Mar-18 s 

330 N. Central Ave., Paris. IL 61944 8,417 6"--36" Mar-18 s 

















FEBRUARY 15, 2023

CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK

1150 HALF DAY ROAD

HIGHLAND PARK, IL 60035

CONTACT:  RON BANNON

RE:  2022 SEWER LINING 

# DESCRIPTION UNIT
2022 UNIT 

PRICE

3% CPI 

INCREASE

2023 

PROPOSED 

RATES

1 6" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 44.00$        1.32$           45.32$          

2 8" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 44.00$        1.32$           45.32$          

3 10" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 49.00$        1.47$           50.47$          

4 12" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 126.00$      3.78$           129.78$        

4A
12" CURED IN PLACE PIPE - UPDATED PRICE AH 8-3-22 

EMAIL
LF 85.00$        

2.55$           87.55$          

5 15" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 65.00$        1.95$           66.95$          

6 8" CURED IN PLACE PIPE - RAVINE SEWER LF 115.00$      3.45$           118.45$        

7 REINSTATEMENT OF SERVICE LATERALS - SANITARY EA 100.00$      3.00$           103.00$        

8 REINSTATEMENT OF SERVICE LATERALS - STORM EA 125.00$      3.75$           128.75$        

9 6" END SEALS EA 140.00$      4.20$           144.20$        

10 8" END SEALS EA 160.00$      4.80$           164.80$        

11 10" END SEALS EA 180.00$      5.40$           185.40$        

12 15" END SEALS EA 250.00$      7.50$           257.50$        

PRICING FROM BID, NOT USED IN HP 2022

6 24" CURED IN PLACE PIPE LF 168.00$      5.04$           173.04$        

PRICING PER MAX 2-15-23

15" CURED IN PLACE PIPE - STORM RAVINE LF - - 145.00$        

12" END SEALS EA - - 210.00$        

24" END SEALS EA - - 415.00$        


	2 Minutes_19_Oct 10-2023.pdf
	MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE PRESIDENT
	Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



